
       Winnebago County Board 
       Regular Adjourned Meeting 
       Thursday, November 21, 2017 
 

 

A M E N D E D   A G E N D A 
 
 
Call to Order ------------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
  
Agenda Changes--------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 

  
        

Roll Call-----------------------------------COUNTY CLERK, MARGIE MULLINS 
 
 
Invocation ---------------------------------------------------------------------J. CROSBY 
                
 

Awards, Presentations and/or Proclamations and Public 
Participation 

 
 
Awards -    None 
 
Presentations   -    None 
 
Proclamations   -    None 

 
Public Participation     -    Rev. Derrick Shelby, Containment - PRO 
 
 
Minutes 
 
“May I Please Have a Motion to Approve the Minutes from the October 26, 
2017 Meeting and to Layover the Minutes from the November 9, 2017 
Meeting. 
 
Announcements & Communications-------------------MARGIE MULLINS 
 
“The Items Listed Below Were Received as Correspondence” 
Chairman Haney To Be “PLACED ON FILE”. 



 
1. County Clerk Mullins received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission the following: 
 
A.  
 

2. County   Clerk   Mullins   received   the following   from   the Illinois Environmental  
Protection Agency: 

 
  A. A Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste; Description of Project:   

Modifications to the current East Expansion Unit CQA Program to update 
testing frequencies and specifications. 

 
 B. A Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste; Description of Project: 

Application to revise the facility boundary and the East Expansion Unit 
traffic plan. 

  
3. County Clerk Mullins received from ComEd a letter regarding Notification of 

vegetation management activities on distribution circuits in our area within the next 
few months. 

 
4. County Clerk Mullins received from Comcast the following: 
 

A.  A letter regarding changes to the Comcast channel line-up in our 
community.   

  
B. A letter regarding Price Changes effective January 1, 2018.  

 
5. County Clerk Mullins received the following form Charter Communications: 
 

A. A notice regarding changes that will occur for the Spectrum television 
channel line-up in our communities by December 1, 2017. 

 
 B. Notices of Quarterly Franchise Fee Payments for: 
 
  1. Harlem, IL, Township of Winnebago County 
  2. Town of Rockton IL, Winnebago County 
  3. Town of Roscoe IL, Winnebago County 
 
6. County Clerk Mullins received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy of Winnebago 

County Treasurer the Investment Report for November, 2017. 
 
7. County Clerk Mullins received from Winnebago County Treasurer Sue Goral the 

Monthly Bank Balance Report for October, 2017. 
 
8. Count Clerk Mullins received from ComEd a letter informing the County that 

during the months of December 2017 and January and February 2018 ComEd will 
begin performing regularly scheduled Transmission Corridor vegetation 
management activities within our area. 



 
 

GO TO REGULAR AGENDA 



Page | 1  
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street ~ Rockford IL 61101 
County Board Room ~ 8th Floor 

 
Tuesday, November 21, 2017 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  
• Awards – None 
• Presentations – None  
• Proclamations – None 

 
Board Member Correspondence 
 
Chairman’s Report 
 
Consent Agenda 

• Raffle Report 
• Bills 

 
Standing Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee – Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Budget Amendment 2017-025 – New Milford Host Fee 
C. Tax Levy – General Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
D. Tax Levy – County Public Health Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
E. Tax Levy – Detention Home Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
F. Tax Levy – County Highway Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
G. Tax Levy – County Bridge Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
H. Tax Levy – Federal Aid Matching Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
I. Tax Levy – Veterans Assistance Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
J. Tax Levy – Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund Laid Over from October 26, 

2017 Meeting 
K. Tax Levy – Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 

Meeting 
L. Tax Levy – Social Security and Medicare Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 

Meeting 
M. Tax Levy – Historical Museum Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 Meeting 
N. Tax Levy – County Nursing Home Operations Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 

Meeting 



Page | 2  
 

O. Tax Levy – Children’s Advocacy Project Fund Laid Over from October 26, 2017 
Meeting 

 
2. Zoning Committee – Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

A. Planning and/or Zoning Request: 
1. SU-12-17  A Special Use Permit for a crushing and storage facility (asphalt or 

concrete) in the AG, Agricultural Priority District, County Board District 2 
B. Committee Report 

 
3. Economic Development Committee – Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $46,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Anderson Environmental Co.  

C. An Ordinance Adopting Recommendations for 2018 Host Fee Allocations Part Two 
(2) 
 

4. Operations & Administrative Committee – Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Ordinance Amending Sections of Chapter 2 of the County Code of Ordinances 
C. Resolution Appointing Carla Paschal to the Position of County Administrator of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois 
D. Resolution Authorizing American Signal Corporation to Repair and Maintain the 

Outdoor Weather Notification System (Sirens) 
E. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross Blue 

Shield for the Administration of a Self-Insured PPO Insurance Plan 
F. Resolution Authorizing Payments from Internal Technology Fiscal Year 2017 

Supplies and Services Budget Line Item 
G. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Arthur J. 

Gallagher for the Property, Casualty and Workers Compensation Coverage 
H. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Arthur J. 

Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. for Third Party Administrator Fees for 
Liability Administration Services 

 
5. Public Works Committee – Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
 

6. Public Safety Committee – Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report  
 

Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
 
Closed Session – Pending Litigation 
 



Page | 3  
 

Adjournment    
Next Meeting: Thursday, December 7, 2017 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



1 
 

2017 Fiscal Year Finance: 11/21/2017 
 Lay Over: 11/21/2017 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: 12/07/2017 
Ted Biondo, Finance Committee Chairman   
   

 
2017 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017 at its September 29, 2016 meeting; 
and,  
     

 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the following increases are hereby authorized. 

 
2017-025   Host Fee 
Reason: Amount paid to the Village of New Milford for groot was not paid at the correct amount. 
Alternative: None 
Impact to fiscal year 2018 budget: None 
Revenue Source: Host Fee Fund Reserve 
 Other Professional Services 41700 43190  $296,012 

Total Adjustment: $296,012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 





1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
GENERAL FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of general 
county government as set forth in “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Thirteen Million, Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($13,300,000) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “General Corporate Tax”:  for the year 2017 and 
that the County Clerk of said county be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the General 
County Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the Fiscal Year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act in Relation to 
the Establishment and Maintenance of County and Multiple County Public Health Departments,” 
as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Six Hundred Nine Thousand, Eight Hundred Seventy-Eight Dollars ($2,609,878) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “county public health fund 
tax”:  for the year 2017 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes 
as set forth in the County Public Health Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County Of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
DETENTION HOME FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Authorities 
to Provide for the Temporary Care and Custody of Dependent, Delinquent, or Truant Children, 
and to Levy and Collect a Tax for the Purpose.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Four Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand Dollars ($1,465,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2017 for the purpose of purchasing, erecting, 
leasing, or otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining such detention home, 
and said tax was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago on November 2, 
1954.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Detention Home Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Five Hundred Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($2,538,000) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “County Highway Tax”: for 
the purpose set forth in chapter 121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois Revised Statutes 
- 1981 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to 
extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the County Highway Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand Dollars ($377,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “County Bridge Tax”:  for the purpose 
of constructing any bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto by 
means of an embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 
2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
FEDERAL AID MATCHING FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Seven Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($1,780,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”:  
for the purpose of providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses in construction 
of highways in the federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 121, paragraph 
5-603, of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981, and that  the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
VETERANS ASSISTANCE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five 
Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars ($570,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”:  and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans Assistance 
Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
TORT JUDGMENT AND LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort 
Immunity Act,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Four 
Million, Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars ($4,034,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance 
Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend 
a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Pension code,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six 
Million, Four Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand, One Hundred Twenty-Two Dollars ($6,457,122) on 
all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a 
“Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”:  and that the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2018 
Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
SOCIAL SECURITY AND MEDICARE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Revised Statutes chapter 108-1/2, paragraph 7-
172.2.”.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Million, Eight Hundred Fifty-One Thousand Dollars ($3,851,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017, as a “Social Security and Medicare 
Fund Tax”:  and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to 
extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the Social Security and Medicare Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
HISTORICAL MUSEUM FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth IN “An Act to Levy Taxes for the Maintenance of Historical 
Museums,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Seventy-One Thousand, Nine Hundred Eighty-Six Dollars ($71,986) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”:  for the year 2017 and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Historical Museum Fund 2018 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY NURSING HOME OPERATIONS FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago did adopt a resolution for a 
referendum to establish a levy for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a majority of the voters of Winnebago County, Illinois voting in the election of 
November 7, 1989 voted in favor of authorizing the County to levy and collect a tax at a rate not 
to exceed .10% for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Revise the 
Law in Relation to Counties,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Eight Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($1,848,000) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a 
County Nursing Home for the year 2017 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposed as set forth in the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2018 Appropriations, 
and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



1 

 

2017 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY PROJECT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2017 through September 30, 2018; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in the “Children’s 
Advocacy Center Act.”  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred Forty-Three Thousand, Nine Hundred Seventy-Two Dollars ($143,972) on all the taxable 
property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2017 for the purpose of 
establishing and maintaining a Children’s Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the 
voters of the County of Winnebago on April 20, 1993.  the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2018 
Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

November 21, 2017 
 

1 
 

A. PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS:   
 
TO BE LAID OVER:  

 

 
 TO BE VOTED ON:  NONE 
 

 
 B.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not intended  
        as a public notice): 

 
 Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that the next Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, December 13, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
County Administration Building.  The cases currently on the agenda are as follows: 

 
1. Z-19-17 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 129.423 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the 

IG, General Industrial District for property commonly known as 4498 S. Perryville Road, Cherry Valley, IL 
61016 in Cherry Valley Township, District 11. 

2. SU-11-17 A Special Use Permit to allow an outdoor/contractor storage yard in the IG, General Industrial 
District for property commonly known as 4498 S. Perryville Road, Cherry Valley, IL 61016 in Cherry 
Valley Township, District 11.  

3. V-03-17 A Variation to reduce the minimum height of a solid fence from 6 feet (per Sections 15.3.29 A. 1. 
and 20.9 C.) to 0 feet which will effectively waive the solid fencing (screening) requirement for an 
outdoor/contractor storage yard for property commonly known as 4498 S. Perryville Road, Cherry Valley, 
IL 61016 in Cherry Valley Township, District 11.  

4. V-04-17 A Variation to waive the hard surface, all weather dustless surface requirement (per Section 
23.8.4), to allow gravel off-street parking areas inclusive of gravel accessory drives for property commonly 
known as 4498 S. Perryville Road, Cherry Valley, IL 61016 in Cherry Valley Township, District 11. 

5. V-05-17 A Variation to increase the maximum height requirement (of section 18.3.5 B. 2.) for light pole(s) 
accessary to a single family dwelling on private property, as measured from grade at the base to the bottom 
of the luminaire, to 14 feet (16.5 feet from top of pole) instead of 8 feet for the property commonly known as 
7244 Warblers Way, Roscoe, IL 61072 in Roscoe Township, District 4. 

6. Z-20-17 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- .71 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the R2, 
Single-Family and Two-Family Residential District for the property commonly known as 8980 Cunningham 
Road, Winnebago, IL 61088 in Winnebago Township, District 1. 

  

 Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, December 27, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
County Administration Building. 

 

1. SU-12-17 A Special Use Permit for a crushing and storage facility (asphalt or concrete) in the 
AG, Agricultural Priority District, requested by Three S Contractor Services, LLC, Applicant, 
represented by Bradley Brown, Project Manager with Brownfield Environmental Engineering 
Resources, for property owned by Rockton Rock, LLC and commonly known as 11184 and 
11150 N. Main Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township. 

PINs: 
Former PINs: 03-35-200-011 & 012, 03-35-200-005 
& 006 & 03-35-400-001  Newly assigned PIN: 03-35-
200-019 

C.B. District: 2 

Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent w/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
 ZBA RECOMMENDS:  APPROVAL with ZBA conditions (5-1)  
 ZC RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL with ZBA conditions (4-2) 



  
 

  County of Winnebago 
           404 Elm Street I Rockford, IL 61101 

 

 

 
       404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101                                                             Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
                    It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

                Executive Summary  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Date:    November 21, 2017 
To:  Chairman and Members of the County Board 
Item:   Zoning Committee Agenda of County Board - Case SU-12-17 
Prepared by:  Troy A. Krup, Planning & Zoning Officer 
                           Regional Planning & Economic Development Department (RPED) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code, 55ILCS 5/Div. 5-12, Division 5-12. Zoning 
 
Governing County Ordinance:  Winnebago County Code, Chapter 90, Article 4, Section 4.3 Special 
Uses 
 
Background: The Applicant, Three S Contractor Services, LLC, is requesting a Special Use Permit for a 
crushing and storage facility (asphalt or concrete) in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for property 
commonly known as 11184 and 11150 N. Main Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township. 
 
A public hearing was conducted for the above referenced case on November 8, 2017.  All materials 
submitted and or testified to, including the Zoning Board of Appeal’s (ZBA) findings of fact and 
recommendation are within the appeal’s record that is made available to the County Board for review 
(via the link http://wincoil.us/departments/regional-planning-economic-development/planning-
zoning-division/zoning-case-information/) approximately two weeks prior to Board consideration. 
State law requires that the decision of the County Board on this case or any other zoning case be 
based only on the record created and reviewed by the ZBA which has been closed. Any further 
evidence or testimony cannot be accepted nor can further pleas be entertained or considered by the 
County Board.  
 
Questions regarding the process and or schedule should be directed to the Planning & Zoning Division 
at (815) 319-4350 or planningandzoning@wincoil.us 
 
Recommendation: The Board’s Zoning Committee (ZC), chaired by Member Jim Webster, has 
examined the above referenced case/record, considered the evidence introduced at the hearing -both 
oral and documentary- and after being fully advised in all premises including the ZBA’s findings of 
facts (FOF) and recommendation with regard to the case, recommends that the Board conduct its first 
reading on the case at its November 21, 2017 meeting and approve case SU-12-17 with the ZBA’s 
recommended conditions (based on the ZBA’s FOF) at its December 14, 2017 meeting. 
 
 
  

http://wincoil.us/departments/regional-planning-economic-development/planning-zoning-division/zoning-case-information/
http://wincoil.us/departments/regional-planning-economic-development/planning-zoning-division/zoning-case-information/
mailto:planningandzoning@wincoil.us


 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by Economic Development Committee, Fred Wescott 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF  
THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2017 CR ______ 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
COMPLETE A LOAN FOR $46,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND  

TO ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL CO. 
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Jennifer Anderson is the sole shareholder, has been successfully operating 
ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. (formerly known as ANDERSON 
ENVIRONMENTAL & ENGINEERING, CO.) an environmental consulting and remediation 
company based in Rockford, Illinois since 2003; and 
 

WHEREAS, ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. desires to purchase Soil 
Essentials LTD currently located in New Glarus, Wisconsin and incorporate it into ANDERSON 
ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. which has currently resulted in one person being hired and is 
anticipated to result in two additional full time equivalent hires; and  

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. operates its business out of a 

building owned by Jennifer Anderson on North 6th Street, with plans to lease additional property 
on Central Avenue in Rockford necessary for the storage of equipment due to the expansion of 
its business through the purchase of Soil Essentials; and 

  
 WHEREAS, it is anticipated this purchase will allow ANDERSON 
ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. to expand its business in an at-risk commercial district near 
downtown Rockford by saving the cost of hiring a third party vendor; and 
 

WHERAS, pursuant to a Management Agreement between Winnebago County (County) 
and Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) concerning loans from the Revolving 
Loan Fund of the County of Winnebago, RLDC and the RLDC Board of Directors, RLDC 
recommends the County of Winnebago make a loan of $46,000 from the Revolving Loan Fund 
at 6.5 percent to be fully amortized over seven (7) years to ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL, 
CO. with the personal guaranty of Jennifer Anderson. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois is hereby authorized to execute the loan documents prepared 
by Rockford Local Development Corporation and approved by the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney’s Office for the loan of $46,000.00 to ANDERSON ENVIRONMENTAL, CO. at six 



2 
 

and one half (6.5) percent fully amortized over seven (7) years from the Revolving Loan Fund  
collateralized by a subordinate line of credit on all business assets with the personal guaranty of 
Jennifer Anderson. It is estimated that this loan will assist in the creation of a three full-time jobs 
within seven (7) years expand business in an at-risk commercial district near downtown 
Rockford, Illinois.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Planning and Economic Development Director and the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney’s Office – Civil Division. 
 
 
 

       Respectfully submitted,   
                                                          ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
PRO      CON 
  
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Fred Wescott     Fred Wescott    
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Jean Crosby     Jean Crosby 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia     Dave Fiduccia 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Dorothy Redd     Dorothy Redd 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
L.C. Wilson     L.C. Wilson 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, on the ______ day of _________________, 2017. 
 

 
 

      ___________________________________ 
      Frank Haney, Chairman of the County   
      Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Margie Mullins, Clerk of the County of Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



Revolving Loan Fund 
Loan Summary for: 

Anderson Environmental & Engineering, Co. 
 

11/9/2017 

Applicant: 
Anderson Environmental & Engineering, Co. 

201 N. 6th St.  
Rockford, IL  61107 

PIN: 
11-23-477-002 
 
 
 

 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund:  
$46,000 @ 6.5% interest for 7 years 
 
 
 
Description of Business & Project: 
Anderson Environmental & Engineering, Co. (“Anderson”) is an environmental consulting and 

remediation company based in Rockford, IL.  Organized as an S corporation, Anderson was formed in 

March, 2003 and is owned in its entirety by Jennifer Anderson.  Ms. Anderson earned a B.S. in 

Environmental Health from Illinois State University and has 21 years industry experience.  Ms. Anderson 

proposes to purchase an environmental remediation business New Glarus, WI that specializes in drilling 

for Phase II investigations and relocating the business to Rockford. 

 
 
 
RLDC Recommendation: 
Staff recommends a $46,000 County loan to be fully amortized at 6.5% over seven (7) years for the 
following reasons:  
 
1) Participation in this project is expected to contribute to the creation of three full-time jobs.  

 
2) Participation in this project benefits a female-owned business. 

 
3) Anderson is an established and profitable business with a history of operating cash flow more than 

adequate to support debt service. 
 
4) Anderson currently has to contract for drilling services for Phase II work from third party vendors.  

Bringing this work in-house is synergistic and will reduce her out-of-pocket expenses. 
 
5) The business is located in an at-risk commercial district near downtown that will benefit from this 

investment. 
 
 



��������� ���	�

�����������������������������������������������������������������
������������ ��� !"#!"$%&!'()&*+(,+%$&*("+#!"%()-./('012/3 4��56���(+78-89(':1/ ;<�=�>�<�=<?@��<A=<B;
����(C8:80D ;�B@?=(+78-89(%9E/ ���	��;B@�< (%9E/(FG( F3E ��A=>B@��H�;(&7IF3EF3:8-F7(,:8/J,F1/D8-IK �L��5����L (C8:8/ @

@<�@>($M/78(':1/ N=<<@=��;<�=�>�< ($M/78( O:7M/(,:8/ �4��P����P($M/78(C83//8($QQ3/DD ����<�4BR�>B (#3/D-Q/78(':1/(S($QQ3/DD N=<<@=��;<�=�>�<�LL��A@

�����R=��T�?;

=T4���4($M/78( -89 ���U��� (C/I3/8:39(':1/(S($QQ3/DD >;A=($M/78(V-E 4���� (,03:8-F7(,:8/ 	=�	=BW;
($770:.("/EF38()-.-7M,:8/ ���������� ()F3(X/:3 ����(!.Q( F3E(':1/ �4��4��������;<�=�>�<�Y�=Z;<[������5��4����4���;<�=�>�<�=<?@��<A=<B;
�Y�=<Z@<==�@<Z[��������\����������>������>����� 	\������������]�������]�Z��̂�>���̂�������J!7/( /38-G-I:8/(E/3(%3:7D:I8-F7K!%_+"(C+"̀ & +C����;��\���������;̂�������;��\a�̂�<�a�;���������]�;a��̂a����=]]�������;�<�a����������������]����������̂�;�������̂�������������̂��]]����;̂ �̂���� H;�U�B���TH=���@?=@

@<�@>���A�R�A=�	;Z=



� ������������	�
������������������������������������������������������� �� �����������������!����	��������������� ����!������!���	�!��������������������������� ���������	������ �"�� �������"��!�"�������������������!���#��$�!����%������������������������!��������������!�������� ����������!�!����������������� ��������������������# � &'#& (����)*+,����-.�



��������� ����	
�	
��������������	����������	���������������������������� ������	
�	
��������������	����������	������������������������ ���!"#$%&'()**"#+',-#'!./0'112342566277389:;<=>:;?@><A;9?BCDE;<'374F733GHI=;<?B>D;?>=J?8JJ<;KKLMFNO(PMQ'RNMMSTNO'U''371'M'VWX'(WONNW'G''OPYZTPOFQ'SU'V1176[>\?HI=;<K]̂_LMFNO(PMQ'RNMMSTNO'U'371'M'VWX'(WONNW'OPYZTPOFQ'SU'V1176'[<CK:?BCDE;<̀'/a"@<b_;<:c?8JJ<;KK371'M'VWX'(W@<b_;<:c?dK;Y-**%#$."&'P,,.$%2S*e#'f7761g[>\?h;i>9?j;KA<̂_:̂b=RPXM'(!LTTPOF('(klF'NL(W'!LOZ'UPW('425'm'n'NL(W'OZTF'UPW('4'm'5'm'NoY'N47p63TW'q44p53TW'(6nTW'LUU'q44p53TW'(177TW'UPW'773'lUPYZ'771!#./r'!"#$%&'S*"s%'t.ru'F%r".&v'!"#$%&'()**"#+'Y&-v%'W"waq./x-ty;9;A:?j;:>̂9K?:b?ẑ;I0'G'W"{'S/,-#*"r.-/ '[>\?|=}b<D>:̂b=~%"# T".#'�"#�%r'�"&)% W-r"&'W"{'l.&& W-r"&'Y-x%371V �175Q3�7p77 �nQ3n7pVV 771W"{'l#%"�x-t/[>\̂=i?�bJc �C=J @<̂b<?�>:; @<̂b<?[>\ �C<<;=:?�>:; �C<<;=:?[>\qSMMNlL�P'YPkMW~ 7p�13n77 3�3p51 7p6�V�77 36Vp�VqSMMNlL�P'YPkMW~ Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p1�7777 V3pn6 7p16�777 V3p33qSMMNlL�P'YPkMW~ (PYSLU'(NYkOSW~ 7p17n�77 4Vp�1 7p17V�77 46p13TPON(W'!ON(NO�N 7p114177 4�p43 7p114�77 4�pnnTPON(W'!ON(NO�N Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p776377 3pn7 7p77V�77 3p57OPYZTPOF'WPqM(XS! 7p15n377 n7p56 7p15nn77 n7pn6OPYZTPOF'YSW~ 3p434777 �76p5V 3p17�177 643p6nOPYZTPOF'YSW~ TSONTS�XWNO�('!NM(SPM 7p51�577 15np54 7p5��V77 164pVVOPYZTPOF'YSW~ Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p34�V77 �3p�4 7p33V477 6�pVVOPYZTPOF'YSW~ !PUSYN'!NM(SPM 7p46�n77 141p�1 7p5�V677 1V�p16OPYZTPOF'!LOZ'FS(WOSYW 1p76�477 465p�7 1p7V1377 4V�p�6OPYZTPOF'!LOZ'FS(WOSYW Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p751477 15p4V 7p75n377 1np61OPYZTPOF'!LOZ'FS(WOSYW (PYSLU'(NYkOSW~ 7p754477 1np7n 7p75�777 1VpV�OPYZ'OS�NO'qLWNO'ONY 7p376n77 63p13 7p37�377 63p46OPYZTPOF'YSW~'USlOLO~ 7pn1�V77 1�7pV1 7pn1�777 1�7p57�ONLWNO'OZTF'LSO!POW 7p7��777 47p�4 7p7�3377 43p7n�ONLWNO'OZTF'LSO!POW Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p717577 4pV3 7p717477 4pn��ONLWNO'OZTF'LSO!POW (PYSLU'(NYkOSW~ 7p776�77 3p6n 7p776�77 3p61OPYZTPOF'(YXPPU'FS(W'37n 6pV1nn77 3V56p76 6p5�4�77 3V71p3�OPYZTPOF'(YXPPU'FS(W'37n Sp'�p'Op'Tp 7p15V177 n7p6� 7p155677 n7p47OPYZTPOF'(YXPPU'FS(W'37n (PYSLU'(NYkOSW~ 7p16V477 V1p3� 7p165V77 V7pV�YP��kMSW~'YPUUN�N'n11 7p56�377 1VVp33 7p5�3677 161p3VYP��kMSW~'YPUUN�N'n11 (PYSLU'(NYkOSW~ 7p711177 4p�V 7p777777 7p77OPYZTPOF'Wq(!'OPLF 7p15�577 n1pn� 7p15�677 n1pV�[b:>9 ������� ��������� ������� ���������



3/31/2017

1

Presented by:

John Phelps, Executive Director
Andrew Jury, Loan Officer
Rockford Local Development Corporation

� Private, not-for-profit economic development 
agency

� Founded in 1979

� Primary Activity: Small Business Lending
◦ 346 current loans outstanding

◦ $72.4 million loan portfolio; 

� Projects totaling $322.3 million

◦ 6,274 jobs created/impacted



3/31/2017

2

� Source of Gap Financing

� Statewide SBA 504 Lender

� Manage Local Revolving Loan Funds 

� Provide SBA 7(a) Packaging Services to Banks

� Leader in Urban Redevelopment Projects

� Ideal for smaller loans:
◦ Lesser of $200,000 or 30% of project costs

� Typically Used for Subordinate Financing
◦ Eligible Costs:

� Land & Building

� Equipment

� Working capital

� Rates = project dependent

� Nominal processing fees



3/31/2017

3

� Small Businesses (esp. Manufacturing and 
disadvantaged borrowers and distressed 
areas)

� Job Creation ($20,000/job)

� Leverage of Private capital

� Sustainability

� Learn about Business (Product/Service, 
Management, Market, Competition, etc)

� Describe Uses and Sources of Funds

� Evaluate Financial Condition (Analyze Balance 
Sheet-Compare to Industry Standards)

� Analyze Revenue Growth and Earnings Growth 
(Analyze Income Statement-Compare to Industry 
Standards)

� Analyze Debt Service Capacity

� Analyze Collateral and Borrower Creditworthiness



3/31/2017

4

� Approvals in 30 days or Less

� Project Default Rates of 2%/Year

1. $1 Mil Loan Fund Yields $60,000 at 6%

2. RLDC Management Fee Averages 1.5%

3. Loan Loss Reserve of 2%

4. Sustainable Income of $25,000/year

� 8 Total Loans

� Balance Outstanding: $1.1 million

� Avg Loan Size: $137,500

1. Pre-RLDC: $450,000

2. Post-RLDC: $55,800

� Average Interest Rate: 3.18%

1. Pre-RLDC: 2.5%

2. Post-RLDC: 5.5%

� No Monetary defaults (1 Business Failure)



3/31/2017

5

Contact us:

John Phelps, Executive Director

Andrew Jury, Loan Officer

120 W. State St., Suite 306

Rockford, IL 61101

Tel (815) 987-8675

Fax (815) 968-4157

Email: john@rldc.us or Andrew@rldc.us

Illinois DCEO 
Revolving Loan Fund 

(Part 2)
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Presented by: 

Carla Paschal, Chief Financial & Budget Officer

Chris Dornbush, Director of Development Services



3/31/2017

6

What is the purpose of the 

program?

� Loans to increase capital 

availability to projects that 

create/retain jobs by 

spreading the risk among 

lenders and reducing the cost 

of the capital to the borrower

� Loans to for-profit and not-for-

profit businesses

Where did the revolving 

loan funds come from?

� There is NO County money used 

in the Revolving Loan Fund

� The money originated from the 

Illinois Department of Commerce 

and Community Affairs (DCCA) –

is now the Illinois Department of 

Commerce and Economic 

Opportunity (DCEO)



3/31/2017

7

What is the liability to the 

County if the loan goes into 

default?

� The County is not liable to repay 

the loan to the Revolving Loan 

Fund

� The funds available for future 

loans would be reduced by the 

balance of the defaulted loan

What did the DCCA/DCEO 

intend the loans to finance? 

�Loans to companies to 

encourage investment and job 

creation/retention

�Machinery and equipment

�Building construction and 
renovation

�Working capital



3/31/2017

8

Fund Performance
9/30/16 9/30/15 9/30/14

Cash $445,136 Cash $453,863 Cash $360,838

Loan balances 911,994 Loan balances 878,455 Loan balances 949,926

Fund balance 1,357,130 Fund balance 1,332,318 Fund balance 1,310,764

Investment 

Income

25,813 Investment 

Income

21,605 Investment 

Income

27,776

9/30/2013 9/30/2012

Cash $175,544 Cash $183,847

Loan balances 1,107,444 Loan balances 1,066,860

Fund balance 1,282,988 Fund balance 1,250,707

Investment 

Income

32,281 Investment 

Income

43,834

Recent 

Communication 

from DCEO



3/31/2017

9

What are the Alternate Uses 

of the Revolving Loan Fund

� Continue Revolving Loan Fund

� Economic Development Grants

� Transfer to General Fund

� Other



ORDINANCE 

OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2017 CO _____ 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2018 HOST FEE 
ALLOCATIONS PART TWO (2) 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago has determined that host fee funds are to be used for 
economic development; and  

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved an “Ordinance 
Adopting A Host Fee Allocation & Award Policy” that establishes a policy for the use and allocation of 
host fee funds for economic development and provides categories of investment of for these funds; and 

WHEREAS, the spending from the host fee fund outlined and described in Exhibit A, 
“Economic Development Recommendations, Host Fee Spending Otherwise Drawn From Internal Funds” 
is aligned with the host fee allocation and award policy; and 

WHEREAS, upon review of the recommendations from the administration of the County Board 
of Winnebago County, Illinois, the Economic Development Committee of the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois recommends adopting the Recommendation For 2018 Host Fee 
Allocations Part Two (2) as described in Exhibit A “Economic Development Recommendations, Host 
Fee Spending Otherwise Drawn From Internal Funds.” 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County of Winnebago, Illinois hereby adopts spending host fees in fiscal year 2018 on 
the projects outlined in Exhibit A “Economic Development Recommendations, Host Fee Spending 
Otherwise Drawn From Internal Funds;” and   

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, this ordnance shall go into effect immediately upon its 
adoption; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver a copy of the Ordinance to the Winnebago County Administrator, Winnebago County 
Chief Finance & Budget Officer, Winnebago County Auditor, and the Winnebago County Regional 
Planning and Economic Development Director. 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 
HOST FEE SPENDING OTHERWISE DRAWN FROM INTERNAL FUNDS 

PROJECT INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL 
DEVELOPMENT 

WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT 

NOTE 

Prairie Road Pump 
Neighborhood Association Well 
Study 10,750 

Recommended by Dr. Martell and Dorothy Redd.  Funds 
will be used to pay for a study to be conducted by Fehr 
Graham that will outline a shared well design in a 
neighborhood with a failing water system. 

Government Affairs 35,000 Recommended by Chairman Haney.  Funds will be used to 
cover previously approved contract with Nicoly & Dart LLC, 
for lobbying services.  Board resolution originally stated 
funds would be paid in 2018 FY from County Board office.  
Monies were not appropriated to the applicable BLI in the 
budget process. 

Economic Development District 
of Northern Illinois – Regional 
Planning Council 50,000 

Recommended by Chairman Haney.  Monies to be used 
toward annual membership fee.  EDDNI/RPC provide grant 
writing services across the County, studies and reports 
(such as Clerk Recorder Consolidation), and alignment 
management on both local and regional collaborative 
initiatives. 

Blight Reduction – Property 
Demolition 

100,000 Recommended by Dr. Martell.  The federal blight 
reduction grant which was been used to demolish 
properties will not be renewed.  Dr. Martell estimates 
$500K to complete the county-wide demolition strategy 
critical to revitalizing neighborhoods.  $100K will allow the 
Health Department to demolish between 10 and 15 homes 
in 2018. 

Financial Forecasting & 
Consultant Service 17,000 

Recommended by Chairman Haney.  5Cast Plus budget 
planning and reporting software is designed to create 
budget projections and instant scenario comparisons to 
support data-informed decisions.  Also provides ability to 
do monthly reporting and analysis of financial activity 
throughout the current budget period. 

SUB-TOTAL ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
RECOMMENDATIONS BY 
CATEGORY 35,000 110,750 67,000 

Exhibit A



Respectfully submitted, 
Economic Development Committee 

AGREE DISAGREE

Fred Wescott, Chairman Fred Wescott, Chairman

Jean Crosby Jean Crosby

Dave Fiduccia Dave Fiduccia

Dorothy Redd Dorothy Redd

L.C. Wilson L.C. Wilson

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, this _____ day of __________________________, 2017. 

__________________________________ 
Frank Haney 
Chairman of the County Board 

ATTESTED BY: of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

___________________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMMITTEE 
 

2017 CO_______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF THE COUNTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES  
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2 of the County Code of Ordinances, Article III, sets forth 
various criteria for members of the County Administration; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to amend Sections of Chapter 2, of the County 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article III of the County Code of Ordinances be 
amended as follows: 

Sec. 2-122. - Qualifications. 

 The County Administrator shall have a bachelor’s degree in accounting, finance, 
public administration, business administration or a similar degree and/or comparable 
experience and a minimum of five (5) years of supervisory and administrative 
experience, including employment relations.  A County Administrator who meets the 
above criteria may be exempt from the residency requirement set forth in Section 62-5 of 
the County Code of Ordinances. 

Sec. 2-124. - Duties. 

 The County Administrator shall serve as a member of the county board 
chairman’s leadership team and advise on a wide range of issues, including but not 
limited to strategy, policy, planning and communications. 

(a)     The County Administrator shall be subject to the direction and control of the 
County Board Chairman and shall supervise the administration of the 
following:  

 
 (1)   Purchasing and Risk Management 
 (2)    Buildings and Maintenance 
 (3)    Supervisor of Assessments 
 (4)    Animal Services 
 (5)    Human Resources 



 
 

 (6)    Information Technology 
 (7)    Regional Planning or Economic Development 
 (8)    River Bluff Nursing Home 
 (9)    County Board Office 
 (10)   Veterans Memorial Hall 
 (11)   Chief Financial Officer 

 
 (b)    The County Administrator shall have the authority to appoint an appropriate 

designee to assist in the supervision of the above departments.  
 
(c)     The County Administrator, or his or her designee, shall evaluate the 

performance of the directors and/or coordinators of the departments listed in 
subsection 9a) above. 

 
(d)  The County Administrator shall be responsible for managing operational 

budgets to achieve organizational strategic goals for the departments listed in 
subsection (a) above. 

 
(e)      The County Administrator shall:  
 

(1) Maintain regular communication with all elected county officials as 
designated by the County Board Chairman.  
 

(2) Assist the County Board Chairman in the preparation of county board 
agendas, ordinances, resolutions and other business.  

 
(3)   Establish standard operational procedures, work rules, general orders, or 

administrative policies.  
 

(4)   Serve as liaison to county board committees as assigned by the County 
Board Chairman. 
 

(5)   Perform other duties assigned by the County Board Chairman. 
 

Sec. 2-146. - Qualifications. 

The Chief Financial Officer shall have, at a minimum, a bachelor’s degree in 
accounting, finance, public administration or business administration and/or 
comparable experience and a minimum of ten years of increasingly responsible 
experience in executive-level financial administration, ideally with a portion of that 
experience in the public sector. A CPA and/or master’s degree in public policy, public 



 
 

administration, finance or business administration is preferable.  A Chief Financial 
Officer who meets the above criteria may be from the residency requirement set forth in 
Section 62-5 of the County Code of Ordinances. 

Sec. 2-156. - Established. 

 A Finance Department is hereby established under the supervision of the Chief 
Financial Officer and the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-158. - Director. 

 The person in charge of the Finance Department shall be known as the Finance 
Director.  The Finance Director shall be recommended by the County Administrator with 
the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-159. - Organization. 

 The Finance Director shall appoint such number of employees as shall be 
necessary and authorized by the County Board. 

Sec. 2-168. - Director. 

 The person in charge of the Human Resources Department shall be known as the 
Human Resources Director.  The Human Resources Director shall be recommended by 
the County Administrator with the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-170. - Established. 

 A Human Services Department is hereby established under the supervision of the 
Chief Financial Officer and the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-172. - Administrator. 

 The person in charge of the Human Services Department shall be known as the 
Human Services Administrator.  The Human Services Administrator shall be 
recommended by the County Administrator with the approval of the County Board 
Chairman. 

Sec. 2-182. - Director. 

 The person in charge of the Department of Regional Planning and Economic 
Development shall be known as the Director of Planning and Economic Development.  
The Director of Planning and Economic Development shall be recommended by the 
County Administrator with the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-213. - Director. 



 
 

 The person in charge of the Internal Services Department shall be known as the 
Director of Internal Services.  The Director of Internal Services shall be recommended by 
the County Administrator with the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-228. - Director. 

 The person in charge of the Department of Purchasing and Central Services shall 
be known as the Purchasing Director.  The Purchasing Director shall be recommended by 
the County Administrator with the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

Sec. 2-243. – Hearing Officer. 

 The person in charge of the Code Hearing Unit shall be known as Hearing Officer 
and shall preside at hearings conducted to administratively adjudicate allegations of 
violations of the County Code.  The Hearing Officer shall be recommended by the 
County Administrator with the approval of the County Board Chairman. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the remainder of Chapter 2, Article III, of the 
County Code of Ordinances shall remain unchanged. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance Amendment shall be effective 
immediately upon passage. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a certified 
copy of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of the 
Winnebago County Clerk. 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
 

_____________________________ 
      Gary Jury, Chairman 

 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Angie Goral    
  
_____________________________   _____________________________  
Joe Hoffman      Keith McDonald 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________  
Eli Nicolosi      Dorothy Redd 



 
 

     
 APPROVED this _____ day of __________________________, 2017 by the 
County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
Ayes: ______  Nays: ______  Absent: ____ 

























County Board:  November 10, 2017  
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Gary Jury 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
   

2017 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH BLUE CROSS SHIELD 

FOR A THE ADMINISTRATION OF A SELF-INSURED PPO INSURANCE PLAN 

 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers a to its’ employees the option of 

participating in a self-funded Preferred Provider Organization plan (PPO) rather than the health 
maintenance organization (HMO); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago has offered the PPO plan administered by Blue Cross 
Blue Shield to employees during 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends continuation of the PPO plan 
administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, Blue Cross Blue Shield has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County 
for the administration of the PPO plan in 2018 not to exceed: 

 
$50.58 per employee per month 

This is a 5% increase from 2017 rates. 
BCBS will apply a $50,000 credit to the January invoice. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield for the administration of the PPO 
plan for the year January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois, 2787 McFarland Road, Rockford, IL 61107 for administration 
of the PPO plan. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human 
Resources and the County Auditor. 
 



 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Mature 1 1

Current Renewal           Change

Projected Enrollment 449 428 -4.7% .

Single 234 .

Family 194 .

.

Illinois Access Fee 2.51% 2.51% 0.0% .

.

Administration Fee $48.17 $51.61 7.1% . Revised $50.58

Net Administration Fee PCPM $48.17 $51.61 7.1% . 2018 Renewal = 5%

.

Additional Services Annual Charge $2,400.00 $2,400.00 0.0% .

Total Fixed Costs PCPM $48.62 $52.08 7.1% .

.

Projected Average Claim Value PCPM $942.07 $1,101.48 16.9% .

.

Total Projected Costs PCPM $990.69 $1,153.56 16.4% .

.

Customer to receive $50,000 credit 

in 2018

PPO

Filler1

Winnebago County
ASO  Projection

for the period

January 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018

1/1/2018 ASO Renewal

526999

FEE COMPARISON (BY PRODUCT)

Please refer to the ACA Disclaimer regarding benefits and final pricing.

 



 
Sponsored by: Gary Jury 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
NOVEMBER 21, 2017 

 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENTS FROM INTERNAL 
TECHNOLOGY FISCAL YEAR 2017 SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 

BUDGET LINE ITEM 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County has identified records management services consulting payments 
to be made from the Internal Technology Supplies and Services Budget Line Item; and, 
 
  

WHEREAS, the Operations Committee of the County Board has reviewed the records 
management services consulting payments to be made from the Internal Technology Supplies and 
Services Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Line Item; and, 

 
WHEREAS, funding for aforementioned payments shall be as follows:  
 

Federal Engineering, Inc. $ 62,499 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County of Winnebago does hereby approve the payment listed above. 

 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
      
 

Respectfully submitted, 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 



JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  DOROTHY REDD 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 


























	Amended Agenda
	Board Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Finance Committee
	Budget Amendment 2017-025
	Tax Levy - General Fund
	Tax Levy - Cty Public Health Fund
	Tax Levy - Detention Home Fund
	Tax Levy - Cty Hwy Fund
	Tax Levy - Cty Bridge Fund
	Tax Levy - Federal Aid Matching Fund
	Tax Levy - Veterans Assistance Fund
	Tax Levy - Tort Judgment & Liability Ins Fund
	Tax Levy - IL Municipal Retirement Fund
	Tax Levy - Social Security & Medicare Fund
	Tax Levy - Historical Museum Fund
	Tax Levy - Cty Nursing Home Operations Fund
	Tax Levy - Children's Advocacy Project Fund
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Res - RLF to Anderson Environmental Co
	Ordinance Adopting Recommendations for 2018 Host Fee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Ordinance Amending Sections of Chap 2 of Cty Code of Ordinances
	Res Appointing Carla Paschal to Position of Cty Administrator
	Res Authorizing American Signal Corp to Repair & Maintain Sirens
	Res Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agree With BCBS
	Res Authorizing Renewal Agr With Arthur J. Gallagher for Property, Casualty & WC
	Res Authorizing Payments from Internal Technology
	Res Authorizing Renewal Agr With Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services



